Agenda Item #: 3Q-1

# PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

======================================	========= October 18, 2022	[X]	Consent Ordinance	==	[ ] [ ]	Regular Public Hearing
	CRIMINAL JUSTIC					
	I. EXE	CUTI	/E BRIEF			:======================================
Motion and Title: S	Staff recommends	motio	n to:			
Justice (DOJ) FY23) Direct	Edward Byrne Mei	morial amoui	Justice Assis nt of \$131,54	tar 8 b	nce f pegir	ion to the U.S. Department of Formula Federal FY22 (County nning October 1, 2022 through try Program; and
documents, a Board of Co	and electronic gran	t repoi ers, aff	rting forms, re ter approval	ela	ted	the grant award, amendments to this grant, on behalf of the gal sufficiency by the County
part of the JAG Direct through September a funds to the existing continuation funding juveniles and adults	ct Program (CFDA# 30, 2023. The Crim g Palm Beach Cou g to the Reentry P reentering society nty Fiscal Year 2022	16.738 inal Ju nty Re Prograr from ja 2. This	s) for expendit stice Commis eentry Progra m. The progr ail and prison s includes you	turesic m. am . A	e du on (C Thi n pro appro and	al FY22 (County FY23) funds as tring the period October 1, 2022 CJC) approved allocating these is award will provide \$131,548 ovides transitional services to eximately 808 individuals have adults, as well as pre and posi
justice funding to sta critical funding nece	ite and local jurisdic ssary to support a b with factors includ	tions. I proad r ing po	t provides sta ange of prog pulation and	tes rar vic	s and	ary provider of federal crimina d units of local government with eas. JAG awards are based or t crime. The JAG Direct is ar
Attachments: 1) DOJ JAG Progra 2) DOJ JAG Progra 3) Copy of the Gran	ım Grant Solicitatior		ırances			
=======================================	=======================================		 /	===	===	·
Recommended by:		<u>a    /</u>	Hu			10/6/2022
	✓ Depártment					Date
Approved by:	Assistant C	ounty	Administrat	or	-	10 / 11   2022 Date

## II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fi	iscal Impact				
Fiscal Years	2023	2024	<u>2025</u>	2026	2027
Personal Services					
Operating Expenses	-			****	
Capital Outlay	*******************************	-			
Grants and Aids	\$131,548				
External Revenues	(\$131,548)				
Program Income (County)			-		
In-Kind Match (County)					
Net Fiscal Impact	*				
# ADDITIONAL FTE POSITIONS (Cumulative)					
Is Item Included In Current B					
Does this item include the us					
Budget Account Exp No: Ful Rev No: Ful	nd <u>1507</u> Departm nd <u>1507</u> Departm				
B. Recommended Sources of Fund: 1507 Criminal of Unit: 7727 JAG USD Grant: U.S. Department Formula Federal FY22	Justice Grant Fur OJ 2023 nt of Justice (DO、	nd J) Edward Byri	ne Memorial	Justice Assis	tance
*This grant was budgeted at stunding from DOJ decreased submitted with the receive and	to \$131,548. A d	downward budg			
	Spo	Digitally signed by Mananela Diaz DN: DC=org, DC=pbcgov, OU=Enterp OU=PSD, OU=Users, CN=Mananela Diaz, E=MDiaz@pbcgov.org Reason: I am the author of this docum			
Departmental Fiscal Review		Date: 2022.09.01 14:19:40-04'00'	en k		
	III. <u>REVIEW</u>	COMMENTS			
A. OFMB Fiscal and/or Con	tract Dev. and Co	ontrol Comme	nts:		
June Mart 9/2	13/202 akeles		Ja	10 m 10/1	712-2
OFMB 95 11	Ob state	Contrac	ct Administra	ation	
B. Legal Sufficiency:					
Assistant County Atto	10-7-22 orney				
C. Other Department Review	w:				
Department Directo	r				

This summary is not to be used as a basis for payment.

Attachment 1

## U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS

### Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Program FY 2022 State Solicitation

Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government

On behalf of the applicant "State" named below, in support of that State's application for an award under the FY 2022 Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant ("JAG") Program, and further to 34 U.S.C. § 10153(a), I certify to the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP"), U.S. Department of Justice ("USDOJ"), that all of the following are true and correct:

- 1. I am the chief executive of the applicant State named below, and I have the authority to make the following representations on my own behalf as chief executive and on behalf of the applicant State. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any OJP decision to make an award, under the application described above, to the applicant State.
- 2. I certify that no federal funds made available by the award (if any) that OJP makes based on the application described above will be used to supplant State or local funds, but will be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in the absence of federal funds, be made available for law enforcement activities.
- 3. I assure that the application described above (and any amendment to that application) was submitted for review to the governing body of the State (*e.g.*, the State legislature), or to an organization designated by that governing body, not less than 30 days before the date of this certification.
- 4. I assure that, before the date of this certification— (a) the application described above (and any amendment to that application) was made public; and (b) an opportunity to comment on that application (or amendment) was provided to citizens and to neighborhood or community-based organizations, to the extent applicable law or established procedure made such an opportunity available.
- 5. I assure that, for each fiscal year of the award (if any) that OJP makes based on the application described above, the applicant State will maintain and report such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial), as OJP may reasonably require.
- 6. I have carefully reviewed 34 U.S.C. § 10153(a)(5), and, with respect to the programs to be funded by the award (if any), I hereby make the certification required by section 10153(a)(5), as to each of the items specified therein.

Signature of Chief Executive of the Applicant "State"	Date of Certification	
Robert S. Weinroth	Mayor	
Printed Name of Chief Executive	Title of Chief Executive	
Palm Beach County		
Name of Applicant State		

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

County Attorney

Rev. April 26, 2022

#### Background

Recipients' financial management systems and internal controls must meet certain requirements, including those set out in the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements" (2.C.F.R. Part 2800).

Including at a minimum, the financial management system of each OJP award recipient must provide for the following:

- (1) Identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards received and expended and the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and Federal award identification must include, as applicable, the CFDA title and number, Federal award identification number and year, and the name of the Federal agency.
- (2) Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each Federal award or program.
- (3) Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for Federally-funded activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, income, and interest, and be supported by source documentation.
- (4) Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other assets. The recipient must adequately safeguard all assets and assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.
- (5) Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each Federal award.
- (6) Written procedures to document the receipt and disbursement of Federal funds including procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the United States Treasury and the disbursement by the OJP recipient.
- (7) Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with both the terms and conditions of the Federal award and the cost principles to apply to the Federal award.
- (8) Other important requirements related to retention requirements for records, use of open and machine readable formats in records, and certain Federal rights of access to award-related records and recipient personnel.

1. Name of	Organizatio	n and Address:					
Organizati	ion Name:	Palm Beach (	County				
Street1:	301 N O	live Ave					
Street2:							
City:	West Pa	ılm Beach					
State:	Florida						
Zip Code:	33401						
2. Authorize	ed Represer	ntative's Name and	Title:				
Prefix: Mi	r. First N	ame: Robert		Middle Nar	me: S.		
Last Name	e: Weinro	the engine		Suffix:			
Title: Cou	unty May	or					
3. Phone:	561-355-	2204	4. Fax: 5	61-355-4422	an de la companya de La companya de la co		
5. Email:	RWeinrot	h@pbcgov.org	i i				The second secon
6. Year Est 1909	ablished:	7. Employer Ident 596000785	ification Numb	er (EIN):		tity Identifier (UE FMPCR44	l) Number:
		itity a nonprofit orga 501(c)(3) and exen					3
•	to Question	10. stions 9. b) and 9. c	·).				
	•	,	•				



AUDIT INFORMATION		
9. b) Does the applicant nonprofit organization maintain offshore accounts for the purpose of avoiding paying the tax described in 26 U.S.C. 511(a)?	Yes	☐ No
9. c) With respect to the most recent year in which the applicant nonprofit organization was required to file a tax return, does the applicant nonprofit organization believe (or assert) that it satisfies the requirements of 26 C.F.R. 53.4958-6 (which relate to the reasonableness of compensation of certain individuals)?	∐Yes	□No
If "Yes", refer to "Additional Attachments" under "What An Application Should Include" in the OJP solicitation (or application guidance) under which the applicant is submitting its application. If the solicitation/guidance describes the "Disclosure of Process related to Executive Compensation," the applicant nonprofit organization must provide as an attachment to its application a disclosure that satisfies the minimum requirements as described by OJP.		
For purposes of this questionnaire, an "audit" is conducted by an independent, accepted auditing standards (GAAS) or Generally Governmental Auditing Standards report with an opinion.		
10. Has the applicant entity undergone any of the following types of audit(s)(Ple	ease check	all that apply):
"Single Audit" under OMB A-133 or Subpart F of 2 C.F.R. Part 200  Financial Statement Audit		
☐ Defense Contract Agency Audit (DCAA)		
Other Audit & Agency (list type of audit):		
None (if none, skip to question 13)		
11. Most Recent Audit Report Issued: Within the last 12 months 2 years	Over	2 years ago N/A
Name of Audit Agency/Firm: RSM US, LLP		
AUDITOR'S OPINION		and the second s
12. On the most recent audit, what was the auditor's opinion?		
Unqualified Opinion Qualified Opinion Disclaimer, Going Concord Adverse Opinions		/A: No audits as escribed above
Enter the number of findings (if none, enter "0": 0 Enter the dollar amount of questioned costs (if none, enter "\$0"):0		
Were material weaknesses noted in the report or opinion?	□Yes	No
13. Which of the following best describes the applicant entity's accounting system    Manual    Automated    Combination of manual and automated	em:	
14. Does the applicant entity's accounting system have the capability to identify the receipt and expenditure of award funds separately for each Federal award?	Yes	☐ No ☐ Not Sure
15. Does the applicant entity's accounting system have the capability to record expenditures for each Federal award by the budget cost categories shown in the approved budget?	Yes	☐ No ☐ Not Sure
16. Does the applicant entity's accounting system have the capability to record cost sharing ("match") separately for each Federal award, and maintain documentation to support recorded match or cost share?	Yes	☐ No ☐ Not Sure

Approved: OMB No. 1121-0329 Expires 12/31/2023

17. Does the applicant entity's accounting system have the capability to accurately track employees actual time spent performing work for each federal award, and to accurately allocate charges for employee salaries and wages for each federal award, and maintain records to support the actual time spent and specific allocation of charges associated with each applicant employee?	Yes No Not Sure
18. Does the applicant entity's accounting system include budgetary controls to preclude the applicant entity from incurring obligations or costs that exceed the amount of funds available under a federal award (the total amount of the award, as well as the amount available in each budget cost category)?	Yes No Not Sure
19. Is applicant entity familiar with the "cost principles" that apply to recent and future federal awards, including the general and specific principles set out in 2 C.F.R Part 200?	Yes No Not Sure
PROPERTY STANDARDS AND PROCUREMEN	T STANDARDS
20. Does the applicant entity's property management system(s) maintain the following information on property purchased with federal award funds (1) a description of the property; (2) an identification number; (3) the source of funding for the property, including the award number; (4) who holds title; (5) acquisition date; (6) acquisition cost; (7) federal share of the acquisition cost; (8) location and condition of the property; (9) ultimate disposition information?	Yes No Not Sure
21. Does the applicant entity maintain written policies and procedures for procurement transactions that (1) are designed to avoid unnecessary or duplicative purchases; (2) provide for analysis of lease versus purchase alternatives; (3) set out a process for soliciting goods and services, and (4) include standards of conduct that address conflicts of interest?	Yes No Not Sure
22. a) Are the applicant entity's procurement policies and procedures designed to ensure that procurements are conducted in a manner that provides full and open competition to the extent practicable, and to avoid practices that restrict competition?	Yes No Not Sure
22. b) Do the applicant entity's procurement policies and procedures require documentation of the history of a procurement, including the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, selection or rejection of contractors, and basis for the contract price?	Yes No Not Sure
23. Does the applicant entity have written policies and procedures designed to prevent the applicant entity from entering into a procurement contract under a federal award with any entity or individual that is suspended or debarred from such contracts, including provisions for checking the "Excluded Parties List" system (www.sam.gov) for suspended or debarred sub-grantees and contractors, prior to award?	Yes No Not Sure
TRAVEL POLICY	
24. Does the applicant entity:	
(a) maintain a standard travel policy?	
(b) adhere to the Federal Travel Regulation (FTR)? Tyes No	
SUBRECIPIENT MANAGEMENT AND MONI	TORING
25. Does the applicant entity have written policies, procedures, and/or guidance designed to ensure that any subawards made by the applicant entity under a federal award (1) clearly document applicable federal requirements, (2) are appropriately monitored by the applicant, and (3) comply with the requirements in 2 CFR Part 200 (see 2 CFR 200.331)?	Yes No Not Sure  N/A - Applicant does not make subawards under any OJP awards

Approved: OMB No. 1121-0329 Expires 12/31/2023

26. Is the applicant entity aware of the differences between subawards under federal awards and procurement contracts under federal awards, including the different roles and responsibilities associated with each?	Yes No Not Sure  N/A - Applicant does not make subawards under any OJP awards
27. Does the applicant entity have written policies and procedures designed to prevent the applicant entity from making a subaward under a federal award to any entity or individual is suspended or debarred from such subawards?	Yes No Not Sure  N/A - Applicant does not make subawards under any OJP awards
DESIGNATION AS 'HIGH-RISK' BY OTHER FEDER	AL AGENCIES
28. Is the applicant entity designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ? (High risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the applicant's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the applicant.)	Yes No Not Sure
If "Yes", provide the following:	
(a) Name(s) of the federal awarding agency:	
(h) Date(a) the councy notified the applicant actifulation which risk!" designations	
(b) Date(s) the agency notified the applicant entity of the "high risk" designation:	
(c) Contact information for the "high risk" point of contact at the federal agency:	
Name:	
Phone:	
Email:	
(d) Reason for "high risk" status, as set out by the federal agency:	
CERTIFICATION ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICA	NT ENTITY
(Must be made by the chief executive, executive director, chief financial representative ("AOR"), or other official with the requisite know	officer, designated authorized
On behalf of the applicant entity, I certify to the U.S. Department of Justice that complete and correct to the best of my knowledge. I have the requisite authorit certification on behalf of the applicant entity.	
Name: Keffma Herry	Date: 8/5/2022
Title: Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Chairman	7 /
Other:	
Phone: 561-355-2314	

OMB No. 1121-0329 Approval Expires 12/31/2023



U.S. Department of Justice Office of Justice Programs Bureau of Justice Assistance

## BJA FY 2022 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program — Local Solicitation

Assistance Listing Number #

16.738

**Grants.gov Opportunity Number:** 

O-BJA-2022-171368

Solicitation Release Date:

June 22, 2022 2:00 PM

Grants.gov Deadline:

August 10, 2022 8:59 PM

Application JustGrants Deadline:

August 11, 2022 8:59 PM

#### Overview

The <u>U.S. Department of Justice</u> (DOJ), <u>Office of Justice Programs</u> (OJP), <u>Bureau of Justice Assistance</u> (BJA) seeks applications for funding for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program. This program furthers the DOJ's mission by assisting local and tribal law criminal justice efforts to prevent or reduce crime and violence and to improve the administration of the criminal justice system.

This solicitation incorporates the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide by reference. The OJP Grant Application Resource Guide provides guidance to applicants to prepare and submit applications to OJP for funding. If this solicitation expressly modifies any provision in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide, the applicant is to follow the guidelines in this solicitation as to that provision.

This solicitation expressly modifies the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide by not incorporating the "Limitation on Use of Award Funds for Employee Compensation; Waiver" provisions in the "Financial Information" section of the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### **Solicitation Categories**

Competition ID	Category *	Number of Awards	Dollar Amount for Award	Performance Start Date	Performance Duration (Months)
C-BJA-2022-00154-PROD	Category 1 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of less than \$25,000	618	\$9,450,338.00	10/1/21 12:00 AM	24
C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD	Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more	580	\$83,437,803.00	10/1/21 12:00 AM	48

#### Eligible Applicants:

City or township governments, County governments, Native American tribal governments (Federally recognized), Special district governments, Other

#### Other

Page 1 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 By law, for purposes of the JAG Program, the term "units of local government" includes a town, township, village, parish, city, county, borough, or other general-purpose political subdivision of a state; or it may be a federally recognized American Indian tribal government that performs law enforcement functions (as determined by the Secretary of the Interior). A unit of local government also may be any law enforcement district or judicial enforcement district established under applicable state law with authority to independently establish a budget and impose taxes; for example, in Louisiana, a unit of local government means a district attorney or parish sheriff. The eligible allocations by state for the fiscal year (FY) 2022 JAG Program can be found at: <a href="https://bja.oip.gov/program/jag/fy-2022-allocations">https://bja.oip.gov/program/jag/fy-2022-allocations</a>.

Eligible allocations under JAG are posted annually on the <u>JAG web page</u>. See the allocation determination and "Units of Local Government" requirements section for more information. Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of less than \$25,000 will apply to Category 1, and applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more will apply to Category 2.

All recipients and subrecipients (including any for-profit organization) must forgo any profit or management fee.

#### **Contact Information**

For technical assistance with submitting the Application for Federal Assistance standard form (SF)-424 and a Disclosure of Lobbying Activities form (SF-LLL) in Grants.gov, contact the Grants.gov Customer Support Hotline at 800-518-4726, 606-545-5035, <a href="mailto:Grants.gov">Grants.gov</a> customer support, or <a href="mailto:support@grants.gov">support@grants.gov</a>. The Grants.gov Support Hotline operates 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except on federal holidays.

For technical assistance with submitting the **full application** in DOJ's Justice Grants System (JustGrants), contact the JustGrants Service Desk at 833-872-5175 or <u>JustGrants.Support@usdoj.gov</u>. The JustGrants Service Desk operates 5 a.m. to 9 p.m. eastern time Monday–Friday and 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Saturday, Sunday, and federal holidays.

For assistance with any other requirements of this solicitation, contact the OJP Response Center by telephone at 800-851-3420 or TTY: 301-240-6310 (hearing impaired only), or by email at <a href="mailto:grants@ncirs.gov">grants@ncirs.gov</a>. The OJP Response Center hours of operation are 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. eastern time Monday–Friday, and 10 a.m. to 8 p.m. on the solicitation close date.

#### Submission Information

Applications will be submitted to DOJ in two steps:

<u>Step 1</u>: The applicant must submit by the Grants.gov deadline the required Application for Federal Assistance standard form (SF)-424 and a Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL) form when they register in Grants.gov at <a href="https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/register.html">https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/register.html</a>. To register in Grants.gov, the applicant will need to ensure that its System for Award Management (SAM) registration is current.

<u>Step 2</u>: The applicant must then submit the **full application**, including attachments, in JustGrants at <a href="https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/">https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/</a>. To be considered timely, the full application must be submitted in JustGrants by the JustGrants application deadline. OJP encourages applicants to review the "How to Apply" section in the OJP <a href="mailto:Grant Application Resource Guide">Grant Application Resource Guide</a> and the <u>JustGrants website</u> for more information, resources, and training.

Page 2 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

## **Contents**

C	Contact Information	2
F	Program Description	5
	Overview	5
	Specific Information	5
	Goals, Objectives, Deliverables, and Timeline	13
	Evidence-Based Programs or Practices	13
	Information Regarding Potential Evaluation of Programs and Activities	13
F	ederal Award Information	13
	General Guidance for Federal Award	13
	Types of Awards	14
	Financial Management and System of Internal Controls	14
	Budget Information	14
	Cost Sharing or Matching Requirement	15
	Pre-agreement Costs (also known as Pre-award Costs)	15
	Limitation on Use of Award Funds for Employee Compensation: Waiver	15
	Prior Approval, Planning, and Reporting of Conference/Meeting/Training Costs	15
	Costs Associated with Language Assistance (if applicable)	15
Е	Eligibility Information	15
	Application and Submission Information	15
	Information to Complete the Application for Federal Assistance (SF-424)	15
	Standard Applicant Information (JustGrants 424 and General Agency Information)	16
	Proposal Narrative	16
	Budget and Associated Documentation	17
	Budget Worksheet and Budget Narrative (attachment)	17
	Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (if applicable)	17
	Financial Management Questionnaire (including applicant disclosure of high-risk status)	17
	Disclosure of Process Related to Executive Compensation	17
	Additional Application Components	17
	Research and Evaluation Independence and Integrity Statement	17
	Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government	18
	Disclosures and Assurances	18
	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities	18
	DOJ Certified Standard Assurances	18
	Applicant Disclosure of Duplication in Cost Items	18
	DOJ Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility	
	Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements	18
	Applicant Disclosure and Justification – DOJ High Risk Grantees (if applicable)	18
	How to Apply	18
	Submission Dates and Time	19
Α	application Review Information	19
	Review Process	19
F	ederal Award Administration Information	20
	Federal Award Notices	20
	Administrative, National Policy, and Other Legal Requirements	20
		20
		20
	Information Technology (IT) Security Clauses	20

Page 3 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

General Information about Post-Federal Award Reporting Requirements	20
Federal Awarding Agency Contact(s)	21
Other Information	21
Freedom of Information and Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 552 and 5 U.S.C. 552a)	21
Provide Feedback to OJP	. 21
Application Checklist	21

#### **Program Description**

#### Overview

OJP is committed to advancing work that promotes civil rights and racial equity, increases access to justice, supports crime victims and individuals impacted by the justice system, strengthens community safety and protects the public from crime and evolving threats, and builds trust between law enforcement and the community.

The Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program is the primary provider of federal criminal justice funding to states and units of local government. BJA will award JAG Program funds to eligible units of local government as described in this FY 2022 JAG Program Local Solicitation.

For more information on the JAG Program, please refer to the <u>JAG Fact Sheet</u> and/or <u>JAG Frequently Asked</u> Questions (FAQs).

**Statutory Authority:** The JAG Program is authorized by Title I of Pub. L. No. 90-351 (generally codified at <u>34 U.S.C. 10151-10726</u>), including subpart 1 of part E (codified at 34 U.S.C. 10151-10158); see also 28 U.S.C. 530C(a).

#### Specific Information

#### Statutory Formula

JAG awards are based on a statutory formula that is fully described within the <u>JAG Technical Report</u>. Once each fiscal year's overall JAG Program funding level is determined, BJA works with the Bureau of Justice Statistics to begin a four-step grant award calculation process, which, in general, consists of:

- 1. Computing an initial JAG allocation for each state, based on its share of violent crime and population (weighted equally).
- 2. Reviewing the initial JAG allocation amount to determine if the state allocation is less than the minimum award amount defined in the JAG legislation (0.25 percent of the total). If this is the case, the state is funded at the minimum level, and the funds required for this are deducted from the overall pool of JAG funds. Each of the remaining states receives the minimum award plus an additional amount based on its share of violent crime and population.
- 3. Dividing each state's final award amount (except for the territories and the District of Columbia) between the state and its units of local governments at rates of 60 and 40 percent, respectively.
- 4. Determining units of local government award allocations, which are based on their proportion of the state's 3-year violent crime average. If the "eligible award amount" for a particular unit of local government, as determined on this basis, is \$10,000 or more, then the unit of local government is eligible to apply directly to OJP (under the JAG Local Solicitation) for a JAG award. If the "eligible award amount" for a particular unit of local government, as determined on this basis, is less than \$10,000, however, the funds are not made available for a direct award to that particular unit of local government, but instead are added to the amount that is awarded to the state

Allocation Determination and Units of Local Government Requirements Regarding Use of JAG Funds Eligible allocations under JAG are posted annually on the <u>JAG web page</u>.

According to the JAG Program statute, a "disparity" may exist between the funding eligibility of a county and its associated municipalities. See 34 U.S.C. § 10156(d)(4). Units of local government identified by BJA as disparate must select a fiscal agent that will submit a joint application for the allocation to include all disparate municipalities. A memorandum of understanding (MOU) that identifies which jurisdiction will serve as the applicant or fiscal agent for joint funds must be completed and signed by the authorized representative for each participating jurisdiction. Once an award is made, the fiscal agent will be responsible for distributing award funds to the other jurisdictions in the disparate group through subawards that include all appropriate award conditions. To verify eligibility on the JAG web page, an applicant should click on its respective state and note the following regarding the state's allocation table:

Page 5 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

- Disparate units of local government are listed in shaded groups, in alphabetic order by county. Units of local government identified as disparate must select one unit of local government to submit an application on behalf of the disparate group.
- 2. Counties that have an asterisk (\*) under the "Direct Allocation" column did not submit the level of violent crime data to qualify for a direct award from BJA but are in the disparate grouping indicated by the shaded area. The JAG legislation requires these counties to remain a partner with the local jurisdictions receiving funds and must be a signatory on the required MOU.
- 3. Direct allocations are listed alphabetically below the shaded disparate groupings.

Please note that disparate jurisdictions do not need to abide by the listed individual allocations, which are provided for information only. Jurisdictions in a funding disparity are responsible for determining individual amounts within the Eligible Joint Allocation and documenting individual allocations in the MOU.

#### Statutory Program Areas

In general, JAG funds awarded to a unit of local government under the FY 2022 program may be used to hire additional personnel and/or purchase equipment, supplies, contractual support, training, technical assistance, and information systems for criminal justice, including for any one or more of the following program areas:

- · Law enforcement programs
- Prosecution and court programs
- Prevention and education programs
- · Corrections and community corrections programs
- Drug treatment and enforcement programs
- Planning, evaluation, and technology improvement programs
- · Crime victim and witness programs (other than compensation)
- Mental health programs and related law enforcement and corrections programs, including behavioral programs and crisis intervention teams

Note that the statute defines "criminal justice" as "activities pertaining to crime prevention, control, or reduction, or the enforcement of the criminal law, including, but not limited to, police efforts to prevent, control, or reduce crime or to apprehend criminals, including juveniles, activities of courts having criminal jurisdiction, and related agencies (including but not limited to prosecutorial and defender services, juvenile delinquency agencies, and pretrial service or release agencies), activities of corrections, probation, or parole authorities and related agencies assisting in the rehabilitation, supervision, and care of criminal offenders, and programs relating to the prevention, control, or reduction of narcotic addiction and juvenile delinquency."

#### **BJA Areas of Emphasis**

BJA recognizes that many state and local criminal justice systems currently face challenging fiscal environments and an important, cost-effective way to relieve those pressures is to share or leverage resources through cooperation among federal, state, and local law enforcement. Key areas of priority for BJA include: Combatting Hate Crime, Promoting Public Trust between Communities and Criminal Justice Agencies, Reducing Violent Crime, Community Violence Intervention (CVI), Addressing COVID-19 Criminal Justice Challenges and Sustaining Innovations, and Crime Analysis and Investigation. BJA encourages each recipient of FY 2022 JAG funds to join federal law enforcement agencies in addressing these challenges. Additional details on the BJA areas of emphasis can be found below:

Combatting Hate Crime: Hate crimes (sometimes called bias-motivated crimes) are criminal offenses motivated by some form of bias toward victims on the basis of their perceived or actual race, color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, or disability. As noted in the June 21, 2021, BJA Acting Director Mahoney Letter to JAG State Administering Agency (SAA) Directors and the January 26, 2022, DOJ Associate Attorney General Gupta Letter to SAA Directors, JAG funds may be used to prevent and respond to hate crimes and bias-motivated attacks. BJA encourages JAG recipients to utilize funding to prioritize efforts to identify, investigate, report, and prevent hate crimes and hate incidents; increase public awareness and expand/enhance the reporting of hate crimes; enhance the capacity of law enforcement and prosecutors to prevent and address hate crimes through education, training, and tools to investigate and prosecute hate crime cases; increase collaboration between federal, state, local, tribal, and territorial

Page 6 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 (SLTT) law enforcement and prosecution agencies in their investigation and prosecution of hate crimes; assist SLTT law enforcement with training in identifying and classifying hate crimes and update these crimes in their entries in the National Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS); create state-run hate crime reporting hotlines that direct individuals to law enforcement, if appropriate; and fund victim support services. More information on BJA's hate crimes portfolio, including the <a href="Emmett Till Cold Case">Emmett Till Cold Case</a> <a href="Investigations">Investigations</a> and <a href="Matthew Shepard">Matthew Shepard</a> and <a href="James Byrd">James Byrd</a>, <a href="Jr">Jr</a>. Hate Crimes</a> programs, can be found at <a href="Hate Crime">Hate Crime</a> | Bureau of Justice Assistance (ojp.gov).

Promoting Public Trust between Communities and Criminal Justice Agencies: For many communities, recent high profile incidences of excessive uses of force have contributed to strained relationships and a lack of confidence in law enforcement, courts, and prosecutors. Justice system practitioners' ability to address crime and collaborate with the public depends on having trust and legitimacy with the communities they serve. Criminal justice agencies must work together to renew and strengthen relationships with community members and leaders in order to elevate public confidence and trust in law enforcement, the courts, prosecutors, defense counsel, and corrections; reduce crime; and ensure that the rights of all are protected. In his January 21, 2022, remarks to the U.S. Conference of Mayors, Attorney General Garland stated, "...promoting public trust between communities and law enforcement is essential to making both communities and policing safer. The department will continue to fulfill its duty to ensure the constitutional policing practices that promote the accountability necessary to build that public trust." As such, BJA encourages SLTT jurisdictions to utilize JAG funding in support of projects that aim to partner police and community organizations and advance constitutional policing practices that create the transparency and accountability necessary to build public trust. The practices include, but are not limited to: eliminating racial profiling and implicit bias, eliminating excessive force and chokeholds, eliminating "no-knock" warrants in drug cases, eliminating contractual arrangements that prevent investigations of law enforcement misconduct, and prohibiting sexual contact between police and persons in their custody. BJA also encourages SLTT jurisdictions to utilize JAG funding in support of projects that aim to increase trust and confidence in prosecutorial, defense, and court practices such as neighborhood-focused community courts programs and building capacity and tools to protect constitutional rights under the Sixth Amendment.

Reducing Violent Crime: Although the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) Uniform Crime Report (UCR) Crime in the United States publications for 2020 and 2021 are not yet available, there are other indicators to suggest that certain types of violent crime increased in many areas. According to an analysis of 27 cities conducted by the Council on Criminal Justice, incidents of homicide increased 5 percent over 2020, which had already seen a 44 percent increase in homicides over 2019. Also, preliminary data compiled by the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund (NLEOMF) indicates that as of December 31, 2021, 458 federal, state, tribal, and local law enforcement officers died in the line of duty in 2021. This is an increase of 55 percent from the 295 officers killed during the same period in 2020 and is the highest total line-of-duty officer deaths since 1930 when there were 312 fatalities. In addition, the past year has seen an unprecedented increase in threats of violence against Americans who administer the election process in our country.

In June of 2021, the Biden-Harris Administration announced a <u>Comprehensive Strategy to Prevent and Respond to Gun Crime and Ensure Public Safety</u> to stem the flow of firearms used to commit violence including by holding rogue firearms dealers accountable for violating federal laws; supporting local law enforcement with federal tools and resources to help address summer violent crime; investing in evidence-based community violence interventions; expanding summer programming, employment opportunities, and other services and supports for teenagers and young adults; and helping formerly incarcerated individuals successfully reenter their communities.

Recognizing that violent crime and the drivers of that crime vary from community to community, BJA encourages JAG grantees to invest funds to tailor programs and responses to state and local crime issues through the use of data and analytics; coordinate with United States Attorneys and Project Safe Neighborhoods grantees in order to leverage funding for violence reduction projects, and coordinate their law enforcement activities with those of federal law enforcement agencies such as the FBI, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and Explosives, the Drug Enforcement Administration, the United States Marshals Service, and the Department of Homeland Security (DHS); and form partnerships with federal, state, and local law enforcement and prosecutors to identify persons who use guns in the commission of a

Page 7 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 crime and who purchase or sell guns illegally. This includes ensuring that persons prohibited from purchasing firearms (see e.g.,18 U.S.C. § 922(g)) are deterred from doing so by enhancing complete, accurate, and timely access to the FBI's National Instant Criminal Background Check System (NICS) and the submission of all necessary records to the FBI databases in a timely fashion, thereby helping to prevent illegal transfers of firearms to those who are prohibited from owning firearms under current law.

In addition, in June 2021, DOJ issued guidance regarding threats against election workers and a <u>task force</u> to address the rise in such threats. BJA also sent a <u>letter to SAA Directors</u> to address the rise in such threats. BJA also sent a letter to SAA Directors clarifying that JAG funds can be used to deter, detect, and protect against threats of violence against election workers, administrators, officials, and others associated with the electoral process. BJA encourages JAG recipients to utilize funds to prevent and respond to violent threats of this kind.

Community Violence Interventions: In April 2021, the Biden-Harris Administration announced historic investments in community violence intervention (CVI) efforts to combat the gun violence epidemic. CVI is an approach that uses evidence-informed strategies to reduce violence through tailored, communitycentered initiatives. These multidisciplinary strategies engage individuals and groups to prevent and disrupt cycles of violence and retaliation and establish relationships between individuals and community assets to deliver services that save lives, address trauma, provide opportunity, and improve the physical, social, and economic conditions that drive violence. CVI strategies typically focus on high risk individuals and gang and gun violence, as well as the historical and structural challenges that often contribute to community violence. CVI strategies should involve holistic, coordinated interventions attending to the multiple needs of individuals at high risk of gang and gun violence. For example, hospital-based violence intervention programs use credible messengers to connect with victims of gun violence while they are still in the hospital, and then wraparound services are typically deployed such as behavioral health supports, employment access, housing advocacy, and family supports. visit <a href="https://bja.ojp.gov/program/community-">https://bja.ojp.gov/program/community-</a> <u>violence-intervention/overview</u>. BJA encourages JAG recipients to invest JAG funds to tailor programs and responses to CVI in an effort to build strong, sustained partnerships with community residents and organizations to support CVI work in communities most impacted by violent crime. CVI strategies will be highlighted on BJA's National Training and Technical Assistance Center (NTTAC) website, and jurisdictions looking to implement those strategies can request training and technical assistance (TTA) on the NTTAC website.

Addressing COVID-19 Criminal Justice Challenges and Sustaining Innovations: As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, SLTT criminal justice agencies implemented various community mitigation policies to prevent and reduce the spread of COVID-19. Courts at every level were forced to cancel or significantly scale back proceedings, which commonly included suspending in-person hearings, granting extensions of court deadlines and waivers of speedy trials, restricting access to court buildings, and postponing jury trials. This created a backlog of cases, which impacted criminal court operations and court staff, victims, and witnesses, as well as defendants. To address backlogs and other consequences of the necessary mitigation policies, SLTT agencies created innovative ways to administer justice. While many of these innovations had an up-front cost, they hold significant potential to be cost saving and efficient over time. For example, correctional facilities have enabled virtual programming, education, medical appointments, and family visits, as well as efforts to reduce incarcerated populations. Police departments have hosted virtual community engagement events and opportunities, and courts and community corrections have increased the use of virtual staffing, status hearings, client visits, and access to treatment and support services. In addition, resources have supported the purchase of technology like headsets and Wi-Fi hotspots to ensure confidentiality of defense counsel with clients, as well as partnerships with community partners to host outdoor events like drug court graduations. It is important for SLTT agencies to sustain innovations that improved both the efficiency and effectiveness of justice system operations, and BJA encourages JAG recipients to utilize funds for continued innovation sustainment activities and to continue to address the backlog of cases. This could include the purchase of technology to enhance the use of virtual tools to conduct outreach to witnesses and defendants, as well as for hearings and status conferences, staffing, and enhancing access to services; resources to assist the jurisdiction to develop or enhance its case management system to assess and work to eliminate the backlog of cases; building tools to support diversion and alternatives to incarceration as part of the review of backlogged cases; and technology and equipment to retrofit court houses and staff to mitigate risks to staff and those coming to court. In addition to

> Page 8 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

or in conjunction with support for technology, BJA encourages SLTT agencies to address backlogs by instituting triage and other case-processing improvements, including diversion practices, by prosecutors and courts pretrial, as well as the implementation of legal and nonlegal navigators to guide and support defendants through the legal process.

<u>Crime Analysis and Investigation</u>: With the recent increases in violent crime, crime analysis and investigations have become increasingly vital. Law enforcement agencies that have robust analysis capabilities are better able to focus their limited resources in ways that directly improve public safety while protecting the rights of civilians. According to the <u>International Association of Crime Analysts (IACA)</u>, "Crime analysis is both a profession and a set of techniques." The professionals who perform crime analysis, and the techniques they use, are dedicated to helping law enforcement agencies become more effective through the use of relevant metrics, information, and analytical practices.

This past year, ransomware has emerged as an international challenge affecting public sectors, private sectors, and even individuals. According to Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA) <u>Alert (AA22-040A)</u>, "ransomware tactics and techniques continued to evolve in 2021, which demonstrates ransomware threat actors' growing technological sophistication and an increased ransomware threat to organizations globally." To combat this growing threat, DOJ, DHS, and other federal partners have launched a centralized repository of resources for organizations and individuals at <u>StopRansomware.gov</u>. This is a collaborative effort across the federal government and is the first joint website created to help private and public organizations mitigate their ransomware risk.

BJA encourages JAG recipients to utilize funds to support crime analysis efforts, including the hiring of cybercrime analysts and investigators, as well as cybercrime training for state or local law enforcement and emergency dispatch personnel. Recipients utilizing grant funds to support technological devices, artificial intelligence, predictive analytics, and other data-driven solutions ("Technological enhancements") directly should ensure those projects address the tenants of digital trust to include: how the technology will be carefully implemented through training of personnel and the setting and enforcement of policies governing its use to ensure that it contributes to positive outcomes for public safety, the community and/or the criminal justice system; and how the recipient will safeguard privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties throughout the duration of the project period.

#### Additional Uses of JAG Funds

JAG funds awarded under this FY 2022 solicitation may be used to:

- Enforce state and local laws that establish offenses similar to offenses established in 21 U.S.C. § 801 et seq. and/or improve the functioning of the criminal justice system, with emphasis on violent crime and serious offenses, by providing additional personnel, equipment, training, technical assistance, and information systems for the more widespread apprehension, prosecution, adjudication, detention, and rehabilitation of persons who violate these laws and assist the victims of such crimes (other than compensation).
- Support projects related to preventing, detecting, seizing, and/or stopping the presence and use of
  contraband cellphones within correctional facilities. This includes the purchasing of managed access
  systems and other mitigation technologies (as permitted by applicable law).
- Purchase fentanyl and methamphetamine detection equipment, including handheld instruments and training for law enforcement safety, as well as opioid reversal agents.
- Purchase drug-detection canines to combat the rise in drug trafficking, including that of methamphetamines.
- Support efforts to seal and expunge criminal history information in accordance with state laws and policies.
- Support efforts to attract and retain an all-inclusive, diverse, expert, and accountable law enforcement workforce.
- Support virtual reality de-escalation training.
- Purchase humane remote restraint devices that enable law enforcement to restrain an uncooperative subject without requiring the infliction of pain.
- Purchase gunfire detection technology.
- Additionally, JAG funds awarded under this FY 2022 solicitation may be used for any purpose indicated here: <u>Purposes for Which Funds Awarded under the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants</u> (JAG) <u>Program May Be Used</u> (ojp.gov).

Page 9 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

#### Limitations on the Use of JAG Funds

#### Administrative Costs

Up to 10 percent of a JAG award, including up to 10 percent of any earned interest, may be used for costs associated with administering the award, which can include indirect costs.

#### Supplanting

JAG funds may not be used to supplant state or local funds, but must be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in the absence of federal funds, be made available. See the <u>JAG FAQs</u> for examples of supplanting. Although supplanting is prohibited, the leveraging of federal funding is encouraged.

#### Matching Funds

Absent specific federal statutory authority to do so, JAG award funds may not be used as a match for other federal awards.

#### Prohibited Expenditures and Associated Procedures under JAG

The JAG statute, at 34 U.S.C. § 10152(d), specifically identifies a list of prohibited items. JAG funds provided under this part may NOT be used, directly or indirectly, to provide any of the following: (1) Any security enhancements or any equipment to any nongovernmental entity that is not engaged in criminal justice or public safety. (2) Unless the Attorney General certifies that extraordinary and exigent circumstances exist that make the use of such funds to provide such matters essential to the maintenance of public safety and good order:

- Vehicles, vessels, or aircraft\*
- · Luxury items
- Real estate
- Construction projects (other than penal or correctional institutions)
- · Any similar matters

\*Police cruisers, police boats, and police helicopters are allowable vehicles under JAG and do not require BJA certification. For purposes of JAG, a vehicle is considered a "police cruiser" only if it is used in the ordinary course for routine police patrol within the United States. Vehicles (including motorcycles, SUVs, and ATVs) used as "police cruisers" are not prohibited under JAG, and therefore may be acquired with JAG funds in the ordinary course, to the extent otherwise allowable under the award. For more information, please see the "prohibited expenditure list" at: JAG Prohibited and Controlled Expenditures Guidance.

Please refer to the <u>JAG FAQs</u> for details on how to request prior approval (a waiver) from BJA to utilize JAG funds for prohibited item(s).

Note: The use of BJA grant funds for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), including unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), and/or any accompanying accessories to support UAS or UAV devices/systems, is unallowable.

### Other Program Requirements

A unit of local government that applies for and receives an FY 2022 JAG award must note the following:

<u>Trust Fund</u> — Units of local government may draw down JAG funds either in advance or on a reimbursement basis. To draw down in advance, a trust fund must be established in which to deposit the funds. The trust fund must be in an interest-bearing account, unless one of the exceptions in 2 C.F.R. § 200.305(b)(8) apply. If subrecipients draw down JAG funds in advance, they also must establish a trust fund in which to deposit the funds. For additional information, see 2 C.F.R. § 200.305.

Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government (which incorporates the 30-day governing body review requirement) — A JAG application is not complete, and a unit of local government may not access award funds, unless the chief executive of the applicant unit of local government (e.g., the mayor) properly executes, and the unit of local government submits, the "Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government." The most up-to-date version of this certification can be found at: FY 2022 Byrne JAG — Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government (ojp.gov). Please note that this certification takes the place of the review narrative attachment and contains

Page 10 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 assurances that the governing body notification and public comment requirements, which are required under the JAG statute (at 34 U.S.C. § 10153(a)(2)), have been satisfied.

OJP will not deny an application for an FY 2022 award for failure to submit these "Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government" by the application deadline, but a unit of local government will not be able to access award funds (and its award will include a condition that withholds funds) until it submits these certifications and assurances, properly executed by its respective chief executive (e.g., the mayor).

<u>Body-worn Cameras (BWCs)</u> — A JAG award recipient that proposes to use FY 2022 funds to purchase BWC equipment or implement or enhance BWC programs must provide to OJP a certification(s) that each direct recipient receiving the equipment or implementing the program has policies and procedures in place related to BWC equipment usage, data storage and access, privacy considerations, and training. The certification form related to BWC policies and procedures can be found at: <u>Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program — Body-worn Camera (BWC) Policy Certification (ojp.gov)</u>.

A JAG award recipient that proposes to use funds for BWC-related expenses will have funds withheld until the required certification is submitted and approved by OJP. If the JAG award recipient proposes to change project activities to utilize JAG funds for BWC-related expenses after the award is accepted, the JAG award recipient must submit the signed certification to OJP at that time.

Further, before making any subaward for BWC-related expenses, the JAG award recipient must collect a completed BWC certification from the proposed subrecipient. Any such certifications must be maintained by the JAG award recipient and made available to OJP upon request. The <a href="BJA BWC Toolkit">BJA BWC Toolkit</a> provides model BWC policies and best practices to assist criminal justice departments in implementing BWC programs.

Apart from the JAG Program, BJA provides funds under the <u>Body-worn Camera Policy and Implementation Program</u> (BWCPIP). BWCPIP allows jurisdictions to develop and implement policies and practices required for effective program adoption; and to address program factors including the purchase, deployment, and maintenance of camera systems and equipment; data storage and access; and privacy considerations. Interested JAG award recipients may wish to refer to the BWC Program web page for more information. JAG award recipients that are also BWC award recipients may not use JAG funds for any part of the 50 percent match required by the BWC Program.

<u>Body Armor</u> — Body armor purchased with JAG funds may be purchased at any threat level, make, or model from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the following requirements are met: The body armor must have been tested and found to comply with the latest applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards (<a href="https://cjtec.org/compliance-testing-program/compliant-product-lists/">https://cjtec.org/compliance-testing-program/compliant-product-lists/</a>). In addition, body armor purchased must be made in the United States.

Finally, body armor purchased with JAG funds must be "uniquely fitted vests," which means protective (ballistic or stab-resistant) armor vests that conform to the individual wearer to provide the best possible fit and coverage through a combination of: (1) correctly sized panels and carrier determined through appropriate measurement, and (2) properly adjusted straps, harnesses, fasteners, flaps, or other adjustable features. Note that the requirement that body armor be "uniquely fitted" does not necessarily require body armor that is individually manufactured based on the measurements of an individual wearer. In support of OJP's efforts to improve officer safety, the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) International has made available the Standard Practice for Body Armor Wearer Measurement and Fitting of Armor (Active Standard ASTM E3003) at no cost. The Personal Armor Fit Assessment Checklist is excerpted from ASTM E3003.

A JAG award recipient that proposes to use FY 2022 award funds to purchase body armor must provide OJP with a certification(s) that each law enforcement agency receiving body armor has a written "mandatory wear" policy in effect\* (see 34 U.S.C. § 10202(c)). The certification form related to mandatory wear can be found at: Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program — Body Armor Mandatory Wear Policy Certification (ojp.gov). Note: A JAG award recipient that proposes to use funds for the purchase of body armor will have funds withheld until the required certification is submitted and approved by OJP. If the JAG award recipient proposes to change project activities to utilize funds for the purchase body armor after the award is accepted, the award recipient must submit the signed certification to OJP at that time.

Page 11 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 Further, before making any subaward for the purchase of body armor, the JAG award recipient must collect a completed mandatory wear certification from the proposed subrecipient. Any such certifications must be maintained by the JAG award recipient and made available to OJP upon request.

Apart from the JAG Program, BJA provides funds under the Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) Program. The BVP Program provides funding to state and local law enforcement agencies for the purchase of ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor. For more information on the BVP Program, including eligibility and an application, refer to the BVP web page. JAG award recipients should note, however, that funds may not be used as any part of the 50 percent match required by the BVP Program.

\*A mandatory wear concept and issues paper and a model policy are available from the BVP Customer Support Center, which can be contacted at <a href="mailto:vests@usdoj.gov">vests@usdoj.gov</a> or toll free at 1–877–758–3787. Additional information and FAQs related to the mandatory wear policy and certifications can be found in the <a href="mailto:jAG FAQs">JAG FAQs</a>.

Interoperable Communications — Units of local government (including any subrecipients) that are using FY 2022 JAG funds for emergency communications activities should comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants (SAFECOM Guidance), including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable communications. The SAFECOM Guidance is an essential resource for entities applying for federal financial assistance for emergency communications projects. It provides general information on eligible activities, technical standards, and other terms and conditions that are common to most federal emergency communications programs. Specifically, the SAFECOM Guidance provides guidance to applicants on:

- Recommendations for planning, coordinating, and implementing projects.
- Emergency communications activities that can be funded through federal grants.
- Best practices, policies, and technical standards that help to improve interoperability.
- · Resources to help grant recipients comply with technical standards and grant requirement

SAFECOM Guidance is recognized as the primary guidance on emergency communications grants by the Administration, Office of Management and Budget, and federal grant program offices. CISA updates the document every year in close coordination with federal, state, local, tribal, and territorial stakeholders and partners. SAFECOM Guidance is applicable to all federal grants funding emergency communications. The most recent version of the SAFECOM Guidance is available at <a href="https://www.cisa.gov/safecom/funding">https://www.cisa.gov/safecom/funding</a>.

Additionally, emergency communications projects funded with FY 2022 JAG funds should support the Statewide Communication Interoperability Plan (SCIP) and be coordinated with the full-time statewide interoperability coordinator (SWIC) in the state of the project. As the central coordination point for a state's interoperability effort, the SWIC plays a critical role and can serve as a valuable resource. SWICs are responsible for the implementation of SCIP through coordination and collaboration with the emergency response community. CISA maintains a list of SWICs for each state and territory. Contact <a href="ecd@cisa.dhs.gov">ecd@cisa.dhs.gov</a> for more information. All communications equipment purchased with FY 2022 JAG Program funding should be identified during the quarterly performance measurement reporting.

DNA Testing of Evidentiary Materials and Uploading DNA Profiles to a Database — If JAG Program funds are to be used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded to the Combined DNA Index System (CODIS), the national DNA database operated by the FBI, by a government DNA lab with access to CODIS. No profiles generated with JAG funding may be entered into any other nongovernmental DNA database without prior written approval from BJA (exceptions include forensic genealogy). Additionally, award recipients utilizing JAG funds for forensic genealogy testing must adhere to the DOJ Interim Policy Forensic Genealogical DNA Analysis and Searching available at <a href="https://www.justice.gov/olp/page/file/1204386/download">https://www.justice.gov/olp/page/file/1204386/download</a>. For more information about DNA testing as it pertains to JAG, please refer to the <a href="https://www.jaga.gov/olp/page/file/1204386/download">JAG FAQs.</a>.

Entry of Records into State Repositories — As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, a special condition will be imposed that would require the following: Any program or activity that receives federal financial assistance under JAG that is likely to generate court dispositions or other records relevant to NICS determinations, including any dispositions or records that involve any noncitizen or migrant who is undocumented in the United States (18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(5)(A), must have a system in place to ensure that all such NICS-relevant

Page 12 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 dispositions or records are made available in a timely fashion.

National Incident-based Reporting System (NIBRS) — In FY 2016, the FBI formally announced its intention to sunset the UCR program's traditional Summary Reporting System (SRS) and replace it with NIBRS by January 1, 2021. By statute, BJA JAG awards are calculated using summary part 1 violent crime data from the FBI's UCR program. Specifically, the formula allocations for JAG rely heavily on the ratio of "the average number of part 1 violent crimes of the UCR of the FBI reported by such state for the three most recent years reported by such state to the average annual number of such crimes reported by all states for such years" (34 U.S.C. 10156(a)(1) (B)). Further, the local allocations rely on the "average annual number of part 1 violent crimes reported by such unit to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the 3 most recent calendar years for which such data is available bears to the number of part 1 violent crimes reported by all units of local government in the State in which the unit is located to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for such years" (34 U.S.C. 10156(d)(2)(A). In preparation for the FBI's 2021 NIBRS compliance deadline, BJA imposed an administrative requirement for JAG award recipients that are not NIBRS compliant to dedicate 3 percent of their JAG award toward coming into full compliance with the FBI's NIBRS data submission requirement to both encourage and assist jurisdictions in working toward compliance and ensure they continued to have critical criminal justice funding available through JAG when SRS transitioned to NIBRS. A NIBRS set-aside is NOT required for FY 2022 awards; however, JAG recipients are encouraged to continue working toward and/or maintaining NIBRS compliance to ensure that JAG eligibility is not affected in future fiscal years. More information about NIBRS, including toolkits and updates from the FBI Criminal Justice Information Services team, can be found at NIBRS — FBI.

#### Goals, Objectives, Deliverables, and Timeline

#### Gnale

In general, the FY 2022 JAG Program is designed to provide units of local government with additional personnel, equipment, supplies, contractual support, training, technical assistance, and information systems for criminal justice.

#### Objectives

The objectives are directly related to the JAG Program accountability measures described at <a href="https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/g/files/xyckuh186/files/media/document/jag-pmt-accountability-measures.pdf">https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/g/files/xyckuh186/files/media/document/jag-pmt-accountability-measures.pdf</a>.

#### Deliverables

A unit of local government that receives an FY 2022 JAG award will be required to produce various types of reports including quarterly financial reports, quarterly performance reports, and semi-annual progress reports in JustGrants.

The Goals, Objectives, and Deliverables are directly related to the performance measures that show the completed work's results, as discussed in the "Application and Submission Information" section.

### **Evidence-Based Programs or Practices**

OJP strongly encourages the use of data and evidence in policymaking and program development for criminal justice, juvenile justice, and crime victim services. For additional information and resources on evidence-based programs or practices, see the <a href="OJP Grant Application Resource Guide">OJP Grant Application Resource Guide</a>.

### Information Regarding Potential Evaluation of Programs and Activities

OJP may conduct or support an evaluation of the programs and activities funded under this solicitation. For additional information, see the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide section entitled "Information Regarding Potential Evaluation of Programs and Activities."

#### **Federal Award Information**

#### General Guidance for Federal Award

Total number of awards BJA expects to make:1198 Maximum dollar amount for each award: \$4,283,151

Page 13 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 Total amount to be awarded under solicitation: \$92,888,141

Period of performance start date: October 1, 2021 Period of performance duration:24–48 months

Category 1 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of Less than \$25,000: Units of local government that are listed on the JAG web page as eligible for an allocation amount of less than \$25,000 should apply under Category 1. This includes direct and joint (disparate) allocations. Category 1 awards of less than \$25,000 are 2 years in length. Extensions of up to 2 years can be requested for these awards via JustGrants no fewer than 30 days prior to the project period end date and will be automatically granted upon request.

Category 2 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of \$25,000 or More: Units of local government that are listed on the JAG web page as eligible for an allocation amount of \$25,000 or more should apply under Category 2. This includes direct and joint (disparate) allocations. Category 2 awards of at least \$25,000 are 4 years in length. Extensions beyond this period may be made on a case-by-case basis at the discretion of BJA and must be requested via JustGrants no fewer than 30 days prior to the project period end date

#### Availability of Funds

This solicitation and awards (if any are made) under this solicitation are subject to the availability of appropriated funds and to any modifications or additional requirements that may be imposed by the agency or by law. In addition, nothing in this solicitation is intended to, and does not, create any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any party against the United States; its departments, agencies, or entities; its officers, employees, or agents; or any other person.

The allocations for the FY 2022 JAG Program can be found at: Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Local Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Allocations (ojp.gov).

#### **Solicitation Categories**

Competition ID	Category *	Number of Awards	Dollar Amount for Award	Performance Start Date	Performance Duration (Months)
C-BJA-2022-00154-PROD	Category 1 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of less than \$25,000	618	\$9,450,338.00	10/1/21 12:00 AM	24
C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD	Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more	580	\$83,437,803.00	10/1/21 12:00 AM	48

#### Types of Awards

BJA expects to make awards under this solicitation as grants. See the "Administrative, National Policy, and Other Legal Requirements" section of the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for a brief discussion of important statutes, regulations, and award conditions that apply to many (or in some cases, all) OJP grants.

#### Financial Management and System of Internal Controls

Award recipients and subrecipients (including recipients or subrecipients that are pass-through entities) must, as described in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as set out at 2 C.F.R. 200.303, comply with standards for financial and program management. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information.

### **Budget Information**

This solicitation expressly modifies the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide by not incorporating the "Limitation on Use of Award Funds for Employee Compensation; Waiver" provision in the "Financial Information" section of the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

Page 14 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 General requirement for federal authorization of any subaward; statutory authorization of subawards under the JAG Program statute. Generally, a recipient of an OJP award may not make subawards ("subgrants") unless the recipient has specific federal authorization to do so. Unless an applicable statute or DOJ regulation specifically authorizes (or requires) particular subawards, a recipient must have authorization from OJP before it may make a subaward. However, JAG subawards that are required or specifically authorized by statute (see 34 U.S.C. § 10152(a) and 34 U.S.C. § 10156) do not require prior approval. For additional information regarding subawards and authorizations, please refer to the subaward section in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### **Unmanned Aircraft Systems**

The use of BJA grant funds for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), including unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), and/or any accompanying accessories to support UAS or UAV devices/systems, is unallowable.

#### Cost Sharing or Matching Requirement

This solicitation does not require a match.

#### Pre-agreement Costs (also known as Pre-award Costs)

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on Pre-agreement Costs (also known as Pre-award Costs).

#### Limitation on Use of Award Funds for Employee Compensation: Waiver

This solicitation expressly modifies the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide by not incorporating the "Limitation on Use of Award Funds for Employee Compensation; Waiver" provisions in the "Financial Information" section of the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### Prior Approval, Planning, and Reporting of Conference/Meeting/Training Costs

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on Prior Approval, Planning, and Reporting of Conference/Meeting/Training Costs.

### Costs Associated with Language Assistance (if applicable)

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on Costs Associated with Language Assistance.

#### **Eligibility Information**

For eligibility information, see the solicitation cover page.

For information on cost sharing or matching requirements, see the "Federal Award Information" section.

#### **Application and Submission Information**

See the "Application Elements and Formatting Instructions" section of the <u>OJP Grant Application Resource Guide</u> for information on what happens to an application that does not contain all the specified elements or is nonresponsive to the scope of the solicitation.

#### Information to Complete the Application for Federal Assistance (SF-424)

The SF-424 must be submitted in Grants.gov. It is a required standard form used as a cover sheet for submission of pre-applications, applications, and related information. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information on completing the SF-424.

In Section 8F of the SF-424, please include the name and contact information of the individual who will

Page 15 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 **complete application materials in JustGrants**. JustGrants will use this information *(email address)* to assign the application to this user in JustGrants.

Intergovernmental Review: This solicitation ("funding opportunity") is subject to Executive Order 12372. An applicant may find the names and addresses of state Single Points of Contact (SPOCs) at the following website: <a href="https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/SPOC-4-13-20.pdf">https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/SPOC-4-13-20.pdf</a>. If the applicant's state appears on the SPOC list, the applicant must contact its SPOC to find out about, and comply with, the state's process under E.O. 12372. In completing the SF-424, an applicant whose state appears on the SPOC list is to make the appropriate selection in response to question 19 once the applicant has complied with its state E.O. 12372 process. An applicant whose state does not appear on the SPOC list should answer question 19 by selecting the response that the: "Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the state for review."

### Standard Applicant Information (JustGrants 424 and General Agency Information)

The Standard Applicant Information section of the JustGrants application is pre-populated with the SF-424 data submitted in Grants.gov. The applicant will need to review the Standard Applicant Information in JustGrants and make edits as needed. Within this section, the applicant will need to add: zip codes for areas affected by the project; confirm its Authorized Representative; and verify and confirm the organization's unique entity identifier, legal name, and address.

#### **Proposal Narrative**

The proposal narrative should be submitted as an attachment in JustGrants. The attached document should be double-spaced, using a standard 12-point Times New Roman font, and have no less than 1-inch margins. Pages should be numbered and submitted as an attachment.

#### Category 1 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of Less than \$25,000

The proposal narrative for Category 1 applications should include a description of the project(s), including subawards, if applicable, to be funded with JAG funds over the 2-year grant period.

#### Category 2 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of \$25,000 or More

The proposal narrative for Category 2 applications should include:

- a. <u>Description of the Issue</u> Identify the unit of local government's strategy/funding priorities for the FY 2022 JAG funds, the subgrant award process (if applicable, including disparates) and timeline, any progress or challenges, and a description of the programs to be funded over the 4-year grant period.
- b. <u>Project Design and Implementation</u> Describe the unit of local government's strategic planning process, if any, that guides its priorities and funding strategy. This should include a description of how the local community is engaged in the planning process and the data and analysis utilized to support the plan. It should identify the stakeholders currently participating in the strategic planning process, the gaps in the needed resources for criminal justice purposes, and how JAG funds will be coordinated with state and related justice funds.
- c. <u>Capabilities and Competencies</u> Describe any additional strategic planning/ coordination efforts in which the units of local government participate with other criminal justice entities within the local jurisdiction.

Plan for Collecting the Data Required for this Solicitation's Performance Measures

d. <u>Plan for Collecting the Data Required for this Solicitation's Performance Measures</u> —OJP will require each successful applicant to submit specific performance data that show the completed work's results. The performance data directly relate to the objectives previously identified under "Objectives."

Applicants should visit OJP's performance measurement page at <a href="https://www.ojp.gov/performance">www.ojp.gov/performance</a> for an overview of performance measurement activities at OJP.

The application should demonstrate the applicant's understanding of the performance data reporting requirements for this grant program and detail how the applicant will gather the required data should it

Page 16 of 23

O-BJA-2022-171368

#### receive funding.

Note: Applicants are not required to submit performance data with the application. Rather, performance measure information is included as an alert that successful applicants will be required to submit performance data as part of each award's reporting requirements.

BJA will require award recipients to submit performance measure data in BJA's PMT located at <a href="https://bjapmt.ojp.gov">https://bjapmt.ojp.gov</a> and separately submit an annual (Category 1 recipients) or semi-annual (Category 2 recipients) performance report in JustGrants. BJA will provide further guidance on the post-award submission process, if selected for award.

#### Note on Project Evaluations

An applicant that proposes to use award funds through this solicitation to conduct project evaluations must follow the guidance in the "Note on Project Evaluations" section in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### **Budget and Associated Documentation**

#### **Budget Worksheet and Budget Narrative (attachment)**

The applicant will complete the budget worksheet attachment and submit it by uploading it as an attachment in JustGrants. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information.

The budget narrative and budget worksheet (attachment) are critical elements, and applicants will be unable to successfully submit an application in JustGrants unless an attachment is uploaded in this section. If an applicant does not have a budget to submit at the time of application, an attachment must be uploaded noting as such, and BJA will add the appropriate special condition withholding funds for budget documentation.

Please note that the budget narrative should include a full description of all costs, including administrative costs (if applicable).

#### Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (if applicable)

The applicant will submit its indirect cost rate agreement by uploading it as an attachment in JustGrants. See the <a href="OJP Grant Application Resource Guide">OJP Grant Application Resource Guide</a> for additional information.

This rule does not eliminate or alter the JAG-specific restriction in federal law that states charges for administrative costs may not exceed 10 percent of the award amount, regardless of the approved indirect cost rate

### Financial Management Questionnaire (including applicant disclosure of high-risk status)

The applicant will download the questionnaire, complete it, and submit it by uploading it as an attachment in JustGrants. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information and the link to the questionnaire.

#### Disclosure of Process Related to Executive Compensation

This solicitation expressly modifies the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide by not incorporating its "Disclosure of Process Related to Executive Compensation" provisions. Applicants to this solicitation are not required to provide this disclosure.

## **Additional Application Components**

The applicant will attach the requested documentation in JustGrants.

#### Research and Evaluation Independence and Integrity Statement

If an application proposes research (including research and development) and/or evaluation, the applicant must
Page 17 of 23
O-BJA-2022-171368

demonstrate research/evaluation independence and integrity, including appropriate safeguards, before it may receive award funds. The applicant will submit documentation of its research and evaluation independence and integrity by uploading it as an attachment in JustGrants. For additional information, see the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government

A JAG application is not complete, and a unit of local government may not access award funds, unless the chief executive of the applicant unit of local government (e.g., the mayor) properly executes, and submits, the "Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government" attached in the section above entitled "Other Program Requirements." The most up-to-date certification form can be found at: FY 2022 Byrne JAG — Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government (ojp.gov).

#### **Disclosures and Assurances**

The applicant will address the following disclosures and assurances.

#### Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

Complete and submit the SF-LLL in Grants.gov. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information.

#### **DOJ Certified Standard Assurances**

Review and accept the DOJ Certified Standard Assurances in JustGrants. See the  $\underline{\text{OJP Grant Application}}$  Resource Guide for additional information.

#### Applicant Disclosure of Duplication in Cost Items

Complete the JustGrants web-based Applicant Disclosure of Duplication in Cost Items form. See the  $\frac{\text{OJP Grant}}{\text{Application Resource Guide}}$  for additional information.

DOJ Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements

Review and accept the DOJ Certified Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; and Law Enforcement and Community Policing in JustGrants. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information.

#### Applicant Disclosure and Justification - DOJ High Risk Grantees (if applicable)

If applicable, submit the DOJ High Risk Disclosure and Justification as an attachment in JustGrants. A DOJ High Risk Grantee is an award recipient that has received a DOJ High Risk designation based on a documented history of unsatisfactory performance, financial instability, management system or other internal control deficiencies, or noncompliance with award terms and conditions on prior awards, or that is otherwise not responsible. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information.

#### How to Apply

Step 1: The applicant must submit the SF-424 and an SF-LLL in Grants.gov at <a href="https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/register.html">https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/register.html</a>.

Step 2: The applicant must then submit the **full application**, including attachments, in JustGrants at  $\underline{JustGrants.usdoj.gov.}$ 

For additional information, see the "How to Apply" section in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide and the DOJ Application Submission Checklist.

Page 18 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

#### **Submission Dates and Time**

The SF-424 and the SF-LLL must be submitted in Grants.gov by August 10, 2022 at 8:59 p.m. eastern time.

The full application must be submitted in JustGrants by August 11, 2022 at 8:59 p.m. eastern time.

OJP urges applicants to submit their Grants.gov and JustGrants submissions prior to the due dates to allow sufficient time to correct errors and resubmit by the submission deadlines if a rejection notification is received. To be considered timely, the **full application** must be submitted in JustGrants by the JustGrants application deadline.

#### **Experiencing Unforeseen Technical Issues**

An applicant that experiences unforeseen SAM.gov, Grants.gov, or JustGrants technical issues beyond its control that prevent application submission by the deadline must demonstrate all efforts in requesting technical support in order to submit an application by the deadline. Technical support is available via phone and email to the applicable SAM.gov, Grants.gov, or JustGrants support centers or service desks in which an applicant received a ticket number for resolution. If an applicant misses a deadline due to unforeseen technical difficulties, the applicant may request a waiver to submit an application after the deadline. Note: If an applicant does not submit all the required Grants.gov forms by the Grants.gov deadline, the applicant will not be able to proceed to the JustGrants portion of the application process.

An applicant experiencing technical difficulties with the following systems must contact the associated support desk indicated below to report the technical issue and receive a tracking number:

- Grants.gov Contact the <u>Grants.gov Customer Support Hotline.</u>
- SAM.gov Contact the SAM Help Desk (Federal Service Desk).
- JustGrants Contact the JustGrants Support Desk at <u>JustGrants.Support@usdoj.gov</u> or 833–872–5175.

An applicant requesting a waiver to submit a late application must document their request for technical assistance in an email to the OJP Response Center at <a href="mailto:grants@ncjrs.gov">grants@ncjrs.gov</a> within 24 hours after the application deadline to request approval to submit its application after the deadline. If an applicant has technical issues with Grants.gov, the applicant must contact the OJP Response Center within 24 hours of the Grants.gov deadline to request approval to submit after the deadline. Waiver requests to submit after the submission deadline must:

- · Describe the technical difficulties experienced.
- Include a timeline of the applicant's submission efforts (e.g., what date and time did the error occur, what date and time was action taken to resolve the issue and resubmit; and what date and time did support representatives respond).
- Include an attachment(s) of the complete grant application and all required documentation and material.
- Include the applicant's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) and any applicable SAM.gov tracking number(s), Grants.gov Help Desk, and JustGrants Support Desk Ticket Numbers.

OJP will review each request for late submission and required supporting documentation and notify the applicant whether the request has been approved or denied. For more details on the waiver process, OJP encourages applicants to review the "Experiencing Unforeseen Technical Issues" section in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

#### **Application Review Information**

#### Review Process

OJP reviews the application to make sure that the information presented is reasonable, understandable, measurable, achievable, and consistent with the solicitation. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on the application review process for this solicitation.

Pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, before award decisions are made, OJP also reviews information related to the degree of risk posed by the applicant. Among other things to help assess whether an applicant with one or more prior federal awards has a satisfactory record with respect to performance, integrity, and business ethics, OJP checks whether the applicant is listed in SAM as excluded from receiving a federal award.

In addition, if OJP anticipates that an award will exceed \$250,000 in federal funds, OJP also must review and Page 19 of 23
O-BJA-2022-171368

consider any information about the applicant that appears in the non-public segment of the integrity and performance system accessible through SAM (currently, the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System, FAPIIS).

**Important note on FAPIIS:** An applicant, at its option, may review and comment on any information about itself that currently appears in FAPIIS and was entered by a federal awarding agency. OJP will consider such comments by the applicant, in addition to the other information in FAPIIS, in its assessment of the risk posed by the applicant.

Absent explicit statutory authorization or written delegation of authority to the contrary, the Assistant Attorney General will make all final award decisions.

#### Federal Award Administration Information

#### Federal Award Notices

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on award notifications and instructions.

#### Administrative, National Policy, and Other Legal Requirements

If selected for funding, in addition to implementing the funded project consistent with the OJP-approved application, the recipient must comply with all award conditions and all applicable requirements of federal statutes and regulations, including the applicable requirements referred to in the assurances and certifications executed in connection with award acceptance. For additional information on these legal requirements, see the "Administrative, National Policy, and Other Legal Requirements" section in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide.

## Information Technology (IT) Security Clauses

An application in response to this solicitation may require inclusion of information related to information technology security. See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on information technology security.

#### General Information about Post-Federal Award Reporting Requirements

In addition to the deliverables described in the "Program Description" section, all award recipients under this solicitation will be required to submit certain reports and data.

#### <u>Category 1 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of Less than \$25,000</u>

Recipients must submit:

- Quarterly Federal Financial Reports (and one final Federal Financial Report after all funds have been obligated and expended) through OJP's JustGrants system.
- Quarterly Performance Measurement Tool reports and a final Performance Measurement Tool report through BJA's PMT. Please note that as soon as all project activity has concluded, that report may be marked final.
- An annual performance report and final progress report through OJP's JustGrants. If all project activity has concluded at the time the first annual performance report is submitted, that report may be marked final.
- If applicable, an annual audit report in accordance with the Part 200 Uniform Requirements or specific award conditions.

#### Category 2 — Eligible Allocation Amounts of \$25,000 or More

Recipients must submit:

Quarterly Federal Financial Reports (and one final Federal Financial Report after all funds have been
Page 20 of 23
O-BJA-2022-171368

obligated and expended) through OJP's JustGrants system.

- Quarterly Performance Measurement Tool reports and a final Performance Measurement Tool report (at any time once all project activity has concluded) through BJA's PMT.
- Semi-annual performance reports and a final performance report (at any time once all project activity has concluded) through OJP's JustGrants.
- If applicable, an annual audit report in accordance with the Part 200 Uniform Requirements or specific award conditions.

Accountability measurement data must be submitted through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool, available at <a href="https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/help/jagdocs.html">https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/help/jagdocs.html</a>. (Note that if a unit of local government provides funding to a law enforcement agency, the unit of local government must submit quarterly accountability measurement data on training that officers have received on use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive engagement with the public.)

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for additional information on specific post-award reporting requirements, including performance measure data.

#### Federal Awarding Agency Contact(s)

For OJP contact(s), see solicitation cover page.

For contact information for Grants.gov, see the solicitation cover page.

For contact information for JustGrants, see the solicitation cover page.

#### Other Information

Freedom of Information and Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 552 and 5 U.S.C. 552a)

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on the Freedom of Information and Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 552 and 5 U.S.C. 552a).

Provide Feedback to OJP

See the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide for information on how to provide feedback to OJP.

#### **Application Checklist**

## BJA FY 2022 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Formula Program: Local Solicitation

This application checklist has been created as an aid in developing an application. The  $\underline{\text{DOJ Application}}$   $\underline{\text{Submission Checklist}}$  is another resource.

#### What an Applicant Must Do:

Prior to registering in Grants.gov:

Confirm your Entity's <u>System Award Management (SAM) Registration Information</u> (see <u>OJP Grant Application Resource Guide</u>)

To register in Grants.gov:

 Acquire an Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) and a Grants.gov username and password (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)

Acquire AOR confirmation from the E-Business Point of Contact (E-Biz POC) (see OJP Grant

Page 21 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368

#### Application Resource Guide)

To find the Funding Opportunity:

- Search for the Funding Opportunity in Grants.gov using the opportunity number, Assistance Listing, or keyword(s)
- Select the correct Competition ID
- Access the Funding Opportunity and Application Package (see Step 7 in the OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- Sign up for Grants.gov email notifications (optional) (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- · Read Important Notice: Applying for Grants in Grants.gov
- Read OJP policy and guidance on conference approval, planning, and reporting available at <a href="https://www.ojp.gov/funding/financialguidedoj/iii-postaward-requirements#6g3y8">https://www.ojp.gov/funding/financialguidedoj/iii-postaward-requirements#6g3y8</a> (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)

Overview of Post-Award Legal Requirements:

• Review the "Overview of Legal Requirements Generally Applicable to OJP Grants and Cooperative Agreements - FY 2022 Awards" in the OJP Funding Resource Center.

Review Scope Requirement:

• The federal amount requested is within the allowable limit(s) of the FY 2022 JAG Allocations List as listed at: FY 2022 Local JAG Allocations.

Review Eligibility Requirement:

Only units of local government may apply under this solicitation. By law, for purposes of the JAG Program, the term "units of local government" includes a town, township, village, parish, city, county, borough, or other general-purpose political subdivision of a state; or it may be a federally recognized American Indian tribal government that performs law enforcement functions (as determined by the Secretary of the Interior). A unit of local government also may be any law enforcement district or judicial enforcement district established under applicable state law with authority to independently establish a budget and impose taxes; for example, in Louisiana, a unit of local government means a district attorney or parish sheriff.

Prepare to submit the Application for Federal Assistance standard form (SF)-424 and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities form (SF-LLL)

- Review Information to complete the Application for Federal Assistance (SF-424) in Grants.gov
- Submit the Intergovernmental Review
- Complete Standard Applicant Information (SF-424 information from Grants.gov)
- Submit the SF-424 and SF-LLL in Grants.gov

After the SF-424 and SF-LLL submission in Grants.gov, receive Grants.gov email notifications that:

- Submission has been received in Grants.gov
- Submission has either been successfully validated or rejected with errors (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)

If no Grants.gov receipt and validation, or if error notifications are received:

Contact the Grants.gov Customer Support Hotline at 800-518-4726, 606-545-5035, at <u>Grants.gov</u> <u>customer support</u>, or by email at <u>support@grants.gov</u> regarding technical difficulties (see <u>OJP</u> <u>Grant Application Resource Guide</u>)

Page 22 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368 Receive email notification to complete application in JustGrants:

• Proceed to complete application in JustGrants

#### **Content of Application Submission**

• Proposal Narrative

#### **Budget and Associated Documentation**

- Budget Worksheet and Budget Narrative (attachment)
- Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (if applicable) (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- Financial Management and System of Internal Controls Questionnaire (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)

#### **Additional Application Components**

- Research and Evaluation Independence and Integrity (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- FY 2022 Byrne JAG Certifications and Assurances by the Chief Executive of the Applicant Government (ojp.gov).

#### **Disclosures and Assurances**

- Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL) (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- Applicant Disclosure of Duplication in Cost Items (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- DOJ Certified Standard Assurances (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- DOJ Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (see OJP Grant Application Resource Guide)
- Applicant Disclosure and Justification DOJ High Risk Grantees (if applicable) (see <a href="OJP Grant Application Resource Guide">OJP Grant Application Resource Guide</a>)

#### Submit application in JustGrants:

· Application has been successfully submitted in JustGrants

If no JustGrants application submission validation, or if error notifications are received:

 Contact the JustGrants Service Desk at <u>JustGrants.Support@usdoj.gov</u> or 833–872–5175 regarding technical difficulties.

> Page 23 of 23 O-BJA-2022-171368





## WORKSPACE FORM

1-800-518-4726 SUPPORT@GRANTS.GOV

This Workspace form is one of the forms you need to complete prior to submitting your Application Package. This form can be completed in its entirety offline using Adobe Reader. You can save your form by clicking the "Save" button and see any errors by clicking the "Check For Errors" button. In-progress and completed forms can be uploaded at any time to Grants.gov using the Workspace feature.

When you open a form, required fields are highlighted in yellow with a red border. Optional fields and completed fields are displayed in white. If you enter invalid or incomplete information in a field, you will receive an error message. Additional instructions and FAQs about the Application Package can be found in the Grants.gov Applicants tab.

Opportunity Number: O-BJA-2022-171368 Opportunity Title: BJA FY 22 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - Local Solicitation Opportunity Package ID: PKG00275144  CFDA Number: 16.738 CFDA Description: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program Competition ID: C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more Opening Date: 06/22/2022 Closing Date: 08/03/2022 Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS: Workspace ID: WS00949978 Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application UEI: XLZDNFMPCR44 Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL) Form Version: 2.0	OPPORTUNITY & PACKA	GE DETAILS:
Solicitation  Opportunity Package ID: PKG00275144  CFDA Number: 16.738  CFDA Description: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program  Competition ID: C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD  Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more  Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Opportunity Number:	O-BJA-2022-171368
CFDA Number: 16.738  CFDA Description: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program  Competition ID: C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD  Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more  Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Opportunity Title:	<u>-</u>
CFDA Description: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program  Competition ID: C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD  Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more  Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filling Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Opportunity Package ID:	PKG00275144
Competition ID: C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD  Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more  Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMFCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	CFDA Number:	16.738
Competition Title: Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more  Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	CFDA Description:	Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Opening Date: 06/22/2022  Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Competition ID:	C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD
Closing Date: 08/03/2022  Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Competition Title:	Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more
Agency: Bureau of Justice Assistance  Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Opening Date:	06/22/2022
Contact Information: National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center  APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Closing Date:	08/03/2022
APPLICANT & WORKSPACE DETAILS:  Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Agency:	Bureau of Justice Assistance
Workspace ID: WS00949978  Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Contact Information:	National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center
Application Filing Name: PBC BJA Application  UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	APPLICANT & WORKSPA	ACE DETAILS:
UEI: XL2DNFMPCR44  Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Workspace ID:	WS00949978
Organization: PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF  Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	Application Filing Name:	PBC BJA Application
Form Name: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)  Form Version: 2.0	UEI:	XL2DnFMPCR44
Form Version: 2.0	Organization:	PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF
	Form Name:	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF-LLL)
	Form Version:	2.0
Requirement: Mandatory	Requirement:	Mandatory
Download Date/Time: Jul 27, 2022 01:23:35 PM EDT	Download Date/Time:	Jul 27, 2022 01:23:35 PM EDT
Form State: No Errors	Form State:	No Errors

FORM ACTIONS:

## **DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES**

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C.1352

OMB Number: 4040-0013 Expiration Date: 02/28/2025

1 * Type of Fodorol Action: 2 * Status of Fo	
1. * Type of Federal Action: 2. * Status of Fe	deral Action: 3. * Report Type:
a. contract	olication a. initial filing
b. grant b. initial award	b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award	
d. loan	
e. loan guarantee	
f. loan insurance	
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:	
X Prime SubAwardee	
* Name	
Palm Beach, County of  * Street 1	Street 2
*City State State	Zin C
West Palm Beach FL: Florida	Zip 33401
Congressional District, if known: FL-018	
5. If Reporting Entity in No.4 is Subawardee, Enter Nar	ne and Address of Prime:
6. * Federal Department/Agency:	7. * Federal Program Name/Description:
DOJ/OJP	Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
	CFDA Number, if applicable: 16 . 738
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amount, if known:
6. Federal Action Number, II Known.	
	131,548.00
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant:	
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant:	Middle Name
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim	Middle Name
Brofiv	
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim	Middle Name
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim  *Last Name Davenport  *Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim  *Last Name Davenport  *Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  *City Washington State DC: District	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  c of Columbia  Zip 20003
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim  *Last Name Davenport  *Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  *City Washington State DC: District  b. Individual Performing Services (including address if different from	Middle Name Suffix Street 2  of Columbia  No. 10a)
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim  *Last Name Davenport  *Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  *City Washington State DC: District	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  c of Columbia  Zip 20003
* First Name Jim  * Last Name Davenport  * Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  * City Washington State DC: District  b. Individual Performing Services (including address if different from Profit.)	Middle Name Suffix Street 2  of Columbia  No. 10a)
Prefix Mr. *First Name Jim  *Last Name Davenport  *Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  *City Washington State DC: District  b. Individual Performing Services (including address if different from Prefix Mr. *First Name Omar	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  c of Columbia  No. 10a)  Middle Name
**First Name Jim  **Last Name Davenport  **Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  **City Washington State DC: District  b. Individual Performing Services (including address if different from Prefix Mr. *First Name Omar  **Last Name Franco  **Street 1 1275 Street K NW	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  of Columbia  No. 10a)  Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2
* First Name Davenport  * Street 1	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  No. 10a)  Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip  20003
**First Name Jim  **Last Name Davenport  **Street 1 100 M. Street SE, Suite 750  **City Washington State DC: District  **D. Individual Performing Services (including address if different from Prefix Mr. *First Name Omar  **Last Name Franco  **Street 1 1275 Street K NW  **City Washington State DC: District  11. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 13 reliance was placed by the tier above when the transaction was made or entered if the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection. Any person	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  of Columbia  No. 10a)  Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2 Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20003
**First Name Davenport  **Street 1	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  of Columbia  No. 10a)  Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2 Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20003
**First Name Davenport  **Street 1	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  c of Columbia  Zip 20003  n No. 10a)  Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2 Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20005  t of Columbia  Zip 20005  t of Columbia  Suffix Land Suffix La
**First Name Davenport  * Street 1	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  Suffix  Street 2  Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20003  Zip 20003  This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact upon which not. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to n who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than  Middle Name  Suffix  Middle Name
**First Name Davenport  * Street 1	Middle Name  Suffix  Street 2  Suffix  Street 2 Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20003  Street 2 Suite 850  t of Columbia  Zip 20005  Middle Name  Suffix  Middle Name Suffix  Middle Name Suffix  Middle Name Suffix  Middle Name Name Note to a civil penalty of not less than

## WORKSPACE FORM

1-800-518-4726 SUPPORT@GRANTS.GOV

This Workspace form is one of the forms you need to complete prior to submitting your Application Package. This form can be completed in its entirety offline using Adobe Reader. You can save your form by clicking the "Save" button and see any errors by clicking the "Check For Errors" button. In-progress and completed forms can be uploaded at any time to Grants.gov using the Workspace feature.

When you open a form, required fields are highlighted in yellow with a red border. Optional fields and completed fields are displayed in white. If you enter invalid or incomplete information in a field, you will receive an error message. Additional instructions and FAQs about the Application Package can be found in the Grants.gov Applicants tab.

OPPORTUNITY & PACKA	IGE DETAILS:		
Opportunity Number:	O-BJA-2022-171368		
Opportunity Title:	BJA FY 22 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - Local Solicitation		
Opportunity Package ID:	PKG00275144		
CFDA Number:	16.738		
CFDA Description:	Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program		
Competition ID:	C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD		
Competition Title:	Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more		
Opening Date:	06/22/2022		
Closing Date:	08/03/2022		
Agency:	Bureau of Justice Assistance		
Contact Information:	National Criminal Justice Reference Service Response Center		
APPLICANT & WORKSPA	ACE DETAILS:		
Workspace ID:	WS00949978		
Application Filing Name:	PBC BJA Application		
UEI:	XL2DNFMPCR44		
Organization:	PALM BEACH, COUNTY OF		
Form Name:	Application for Federal Assistance (SF-424)		
Form Version:	4.0		
Requirement:	Mandatory		
Download Date/Time:	Jul 27, 2022 12:34:05 AM EDT		
Form State:	No Errors		
FORM ACTIONS:			

OMB Number: 4040-0004 Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424				
* 1. Type of Submission:	* 2. Type of Application:	* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):		
Preapplication	New			
X Application	★ Continuation	* Other (Specify):		
Changed/Corrected Application	Revision			
* 3. Date Received:	Applicant Identifier:			
Completed by Grants.gov upon submission.				
5a. Federal Entity Identifier:		5b. Federal Award Identifier:		
XL2DNFMPCR44		15PBJA-21-GG-01359-JAGX		
State Use Only:		·		
6. Date Received by State:	7. State Application	Identifier:		
8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:	<u> </u>			
*a. Legal Name: PALM BEACH, COU	JNTY OF			
* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Nu	mber (EIN/TIN):	* c. UEI:		
59-6000785		XL2DNFMPCR44		
d. Address:				
* Street1: 301 N OLIVE A	VE			
Street2:				
* City: WEST PALM BEA	ACH			
County/Parish:				
* State: FL: Florida			7	
Province:	*		٦	
* Country: USA: UNITED S	TATES		7	
* Zip / Postal Code: 33401-4700			_	
e. Organizational Unit:				
Department Name:		Division Name:		
Criminal Justice Commission				
f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:				
Prefix: Ms.	* First Name	e: Katherine		
Middle Name:				
* Last Name: Shover				
Suffix:				
Title: Interim Manager of Criminal Justice Programs				
Organizational Affiliation:				
* Telephone Number: 561-355-6877 Fax Number:				
*Email: kshover@pbcgov.org				

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424
* 9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:
B: County Government
Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:
Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:
* Other (specify):
* 10. Name of Federal Agency:
Bureau of Justice Assistance
11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
16.738
CFDA Title:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
* 12. Funding Opportunity Number:  O-BJA-2022-171368
*Title:  BJA FY 22 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program - Local Solicitation
2001 17 DE Exwara Ejano nomoziar vasoros nestroanes vano rrojam 2002 voltonoson
13. Competition Identification Number:
C-BJA-2022-00155-PROD
Title:
Category 2 - Applicants with eligible allocation amounts of \$25,000 or more
14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):
Areas Affected by the Project.pdf  Add Attachment  Delete Attachment  View Attachment
* 15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project:
Criminal Justice Initiatives
Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.
Add Attachments Delete Attachments View Attachments

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424			
16. Congression	nal Districts Of:		
* a. Applicant	FL-018	* b. Program/Project FL-018	
Attach an addition	nal list of Program/Project Congressiona	Districts if needed.	
Congression	al Districts.pdf	Add Attachment   Delete Attachment   View Attachment	
17. Proposed F	roject:		
* a. Start Date:	10/01/2022	* b. End Date: 09/30/2023	
18. Estimated I	Funding (\$):		
* a. Federal	131,5	48.00	
* b. Applicant		0.00	
* c. State		0.00	
* d. Local		0.00	
* e. Other		0.00	
* f. Program Inc	ome	0.00	
* g. TOTAL			
l	tion Subject to Review By State Und		
		te under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on peen selected by the State for review.	
	is not covered by E.O. 12372.	selected by the State for review.	
		LAQ (IS IIV. a II amplifus and a refer to the short of th	
Yes	No	bt? (If "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)	
	e explanation and attach		
, , , , , , , , , , , ,		Add Attachment Delete Attachment View Attachment	
21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)    X ** I AGREE   ** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency specific instructions.			
Authorized Re	oresentative:		
Prefix:	Ms.	* First Name: Regenia	
Middle Name:			
L	Herring		
Suffix:			
* Title: Executive Director			
* Telephone Number: 561-355-2314 Fax Number:			
* Email: Rherr	ing@pbcgov.org		
* Signature of A	uthorized Representative: Completed by	Grants.gov upon submission. * Date Signed: Completed by Grants.gov upon submission.	

BJA FY22 Edward Bryne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program – Local Solicitation

**Palm Beach County Reentry Services** 

**Proposal Narrative** 

Category 2 – Eligible Allocation Amounts of \$25,000 or More

a) Description of the Issue

Returning from prison or jail without the basic necessities brings about extreme hardship

and anguish for returning citizens and their families. Over 77 million Americans hold a criminal

record or 1 in 3 Americans have some type of criminal record. In Florida, this translates into

nearly 2 million of the state's citizens. Nearly 1 in 3 Americans will have been arrested by age 23.2

Many of these individuals have only minor records, such as minor violations, misdemeanors, or

arrests without conviction. Nevertheless, these minor criminal records can present lifetime barriers

to opportunities for full redemption and make rehabilitation virtually impossible. Individuals who

have served their time and turned their lives around often find themselves trapped in a lifetime

sentence that creates barriers to housing, education, gainful employment, driver's licenses, credit,

public benefits and other pathways to opportunities.<sup>3</sup> According to the National Employment Law

Project, 1 in 4 jobs require a license, but Florida imposes 379 restrictions on people with

convictions seeking occupational licenses or certifications needed to apply for a range of jobs.<sup>4</sup>

As of July 2019, only 13 cities and counties in Florida have adopted Fair-Chance Policies, which

give people with criminal records a fair chance when applying for jobs; Palm Beach County (PBC)

<sup>1</sup> techjury.net/blog/criminal-record-statistics/

<sup>2</sup> https://www.nytimes.com/2011/12/19/us/nearly-a-third-of-americans-are-arrested-by-23-study-says.html

https://floridarrc.com/stories/#

<sup>4</sup> https://www.nelp.org/campaign/ensuring-fair-chance-to-work/

1

is among the 13. Unfortunately, only 34% of the population is covered and these policies only apply to local government jobs.<sup>5</sup>

These issues over time make it very difficult for people with a criminal record to survive and turn their lives around. A criminal record in Florida includes both minor and major encounters with the law. Unfortunately, as residents of Florida, most individuals with a criminal record can carry these records the rest of their lives. Depending on their sentence, it could include the loss of their civil rights. Reentry back into the community following an arrest or years of incarceration can be difficult and create both short and long-term challenges. Formerly incarcerated people are nearly 10 times more likely to experience homelessness than a person without a criminal history.<sup>6</sup> They are also two times as likely to reoffend than those with stable housing because of their inability to access stable housing.<sup>7</sup> The Council of State Governments Justice Center reports that of the 30,000 inmates released annually from Florida prisons, only 1,500 had access to any type of education while incarcerated and that any form of education can reduce recidivism 43%.

According to the 2020 United States census, PBC ranks as the 26<sup>th</sup> largest county in the U.S. with more than 1.5 million residents. In 2021, PBC had approximately 996 Florida Department of Corrections (FDC) returning residents that were released back into the community. Due to Florida's sentencing structure, the majority of people released from prison reach their maximum sentence and are released *without community supervision*, unless an individual is convicted of a sex offense. While this poses challenges, it makes it more important that returning citizens are connected to local reentry programming within the first three years of release. All individuals

\_

 $https://niccc.csgjusticecenter.org/database/results/?jurisdiction=224\&consequence\_category=377\&narrow\_category=\&triggering\_offense\_category=\&consequence\_type=\&duration\_category=\&page\_number=1$ 

<sup>6</sup> https://www.prisonpolicy.org/reports/housing.html

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> https://nlihc.org/sites/default/files/2016AG Chapter 6-6.pdf

released from prison must register as a felon at Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office (PBSO) within 48 hours. In lieu of the traditional community supervision, PBC funds reentry case managers to hold people accountable, use evidence-based practices, and provide services that address criminogenic needs.

Based on an FAU evaluation completed in 2021, data showed that one- and two-year rearrests rates for individuals participating in the reentry project were substantially lower than national estimates. According to Antenangeli and Durose (2021), approximately of 73,600 people were released from prison in 24 states in 2008 and 43% were rearrested in the first year of being released. This is approximately 15 percentage points more than those who participated in PBCs Reentry program. In addition, individuals who successfully complete PBC's reentry program had significantly lower odds of being rearrested, reconvicted, and reincarcerated.

PBC's Reentry program saw its enrollment of returning citizens in FY21 increase 56% with new enrollees released from state prison, 18% from juvenile residential facilities, and 26% from local jails. There is a continued need to provide services that meet the basic needs of returning citizens to ensure they become productive and law-abiding citizens.

## b) Project Design and Implementation

PBC's reentry project was established to help returning residents successfully "reenter" our community following incarceration by offering a variety of human services to reduce recidivism, improve public safety and remove barriers for successful reentry. This project operates in collaboration with the multi-disciplinary Reentry Task Force, Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, The Lord's Place, and the city of Riviera Beach Reentry Center to provide case management and support services to returning residents. The PBC Reentry program serves approximately 600

individuals each year. The purpose of this initiative is to provide individualized case management and support services to returning residents. Services are delivered through programming and practices through the provision of case management and supportive resources to meet the specific needs of reentry populations. The County offers these services to adults and juveniles under the following:

**RESTORE** is PBC's adult reentry initiative that encompasses the umbrella of services for adults in need of reentry services upon release from incarceration in jail, prison, and federal custody.

**Back to a Future** is PBC's youth reentry initiative that targets youth and young adults in need of services upon release from residential commitment within the juvenile delinquency system.

These initiatives offer the following Case Management and Supportive Services:

- Case management provides assessment, identification, and facilitate services to address the basic and criminogenic needs of participants through individualized case planning, supportive services, and connections within the community. Case managers are trained in the administration of the Level of Supervision/Service Inventory Revised (LSI-r) risk/needs assessment, Risk-Needs-Responsivity Model, Motivational Interviewing, Cultural Competency, and Trauma-Informed Care (TIC).
- Supportive services offer *Post-Release Incentives*: variety of concessions to motivate, drive, and reward positive behaviors, service participation, and goal attainment for participants and their families. *Post-Release Pro-Social Activities/Events*: activities that involve positive interactions with peers, mentors, and community members, that promote pro-social behaviors and skills, provide service and compassion to others, and introduce

participants to meaningful ways invest their free time. Post-Release Transportation: bus and train passes, bicycles and equipment, ride share vouchers, and other necessary support for participants to be able to travel within the community to access resources, services, and activities needed to successfully reintegrate. Post-Release Employment Assistance: clothing, materials, tools, skill development, and other supplies needed to attain and maintain employment. Post-Release Transitional Job (TJ): hands-on employment training through the implementation of a designated transitional job to build skills and experience, coupled with a cognitive behavioral intervention (CBI). Pre- and Post-Release Vocational Training: job training opportunities in various vocations, trades, or disciplines. Pre- and Post-Release Cognitive Behavioral Intervention (CBI): paid opportunities to participate in cognitive behavioral intervention classes, which are evidence-based therapeutic models to improve emotional regulation, change problem behaviors, and develop personal coping strategies to improve health and outcomes. *Post-Release Medication/Medical Assistance*: assistance with attaining prescribed medication, medication management, and with other expenses related to physical health. Pre- and Post-Release Financial Identification Assistance: funding assistance to complete any prerequisite classes, documentation requests, application fees, or reconciling of fines needed to attain a variety of identification options (birth certificates, social security cards, state identification card, driver's license and related driving courses, etc.). Post-Release Basic Needs: items to meet basic sustenance, hygiene, toiletry, and other survival needs. Post-Release Basic Technology Needs and Financial Assistance: basic technological items and methods of maintaining communication, such as cell phones, phone minutes, tablets, or laptops. Post-Release Education Preparation Class: academic instruction to improve basic literacy in

preparation for testing to attain the GED. Post-Release Substance Abuse Assessment: assessments used to diagnose the severity of substance use and related issues and identify needed treatments. Post-Release Substance Abuse Education: providing access to educational classes or therapies designed to address misuse of drugs and/or alcohol. Post-Release Mental Health Assessment: assessments of mental health used to indicate the severity of mental and/or behavioral health disorders, or related issues, and identify any necessary treatments. Post-Release Mental Health Treatment: counseling, therapies, or other necessary mental and/or behavioral health treatments. Post-Release Transitional Housing: short-term transitional housing opportunities provided via direct service or referral to other housing entities. PBC utilizes the Risk-Needs-Responsivity (RNR) model to guide the reentry process. The RNR model refers to predicting the probability of people recidivating and treating the criminogenic needs of those individuals with appropriate programs based on their level of need.

While PBC's reentry system is data-driven and uses evidence-based practices to inform systems-level changes, more work needs to be done to reduce recidivism and increase successful outcomes for reentry participants. Reentry services are tracked through the County's Reentry Network (RENEW).

Additionally, there is committee oversight; the PBC Reentry Task Force, which provides advice on these systemic needs and changes. Members of the interdisciplinary Task Force include the School District, Department of Juvenile Justice, Palm Beach Sheriff's Office, Department of Corrections, League of Cities, CareerSource, Criminal Justice Commission, State Attorney's Office, Public Defender's Office, National Alliance on Mental Illness, Veterans Association, 15<sup>th</sup> Judicial Circuit, substance use treatment providers, faith-based leaders, reentry service providers,

local colleges/universities, people with lived experiences, and other key stakeholders. A strategic plan was developed to guide PBC in the development and implementation of a coordinated and comprehensive continuum of care for all returning residents. It includes the mission, vision, and values statements, as well as the membership's ongoing responsibilities, performance measures, objectives, notable accomplishments, and an implementation schedule to track progress. The strategic plan is largely based on what is feasible to accomplish by leveraging existing resources in the community with various partners.

## c) Capabilities and Competencies

Palm Beach County through its Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) has managed the Edward Bryne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) Grant program for over 20 years. The success of the continuous receipt of these funds is directly attributed to the CJC staff. The CJC Executive Director, Regenia Herring, has over 20 years of senior management experience leading human services and criminal justice initiatives, developing, coordinating, managing and evaluating programs and systems, and is an experienced and successful grant writer of federal and state grant awards for criminal justice, human services and community improvement programs. Assisting in the direct oversight of this grant is the Interim Criminal Justice Systems Manager, Katherine Shover, who has over 15-years of criminal justice experience in law enforcement research, records management and program development. The Systems Manager is responsible for overseeing the contract compliance with internal county agencies and service providers outside of the County. Given, this contract is co-managed with another County department, Public Safety, the provision of the service provider contracting is overseen by this department's Manager of Criminal Justice Programs, Jessica Hildago, an experienced contract manager with over 10 years of experience. Her role is to ensure contract

compliance with service providers, completion of required performance reports for each funder, and supervision of reentry staff and services. A team of highly qualified and experienced individuals will provide the necessary fiscal and administrative oversight of the grant awards. The Director of Administration and Finance, Marianela Diaz, has more than 10 years of governmental accounting experience serving as the Budget Director for the City of Tamarac and as the Assistant Budget Director for Palm Beach County and obtained the qualifications necessary to earn a designation of Certified Government Finance Officer (CGFO).

## d) Plan for Collecting the Data Required for this Solicitation's Performance Measures

PBC developed RENEW— an integrated data system that is web-based, client-focused, and tracks case management. The FDC, PBSO, and service providers have access to this system. All interactions with reentry participants and services provided are documented in RENEW. RENEW automatically alerts PBC staff and service providers when people are rearrested at PBSO, the reason for the arrest, and if the person was actively involved in reentry services. PBC also developed this automated system to create individualized transition plans using evidence-based tools for returning residents. The goal of RENEW is to gather data to support the ability to improve the level of services to clients, maximize agency resources, provide valid planning information related to client needs, service gaps, outcome measures and service utilization, and allow for easy construction of reports. RENEW contains detailed information on all returning residents who receive reentry services, such as demographic data, sentencing information, specific offense, date of the offense, and details of the specific sentence. Data on services received, outcomes, and recidivism rates are collected in the system and analyzed by PBC staff. Furthermore, service providers are required to submit Monthly Activity Reports to identify services provided, barriers, and notable successes.